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Operating and Financial Review
STRATEGY

We have a Strategic Plan which organises the University's ambitions under five key themes: Creating Opportunity,
Valuingldeas, Entiching Society, Connecting Globally and Empowering People.

Creating opportunity

Our Employability work goes from strength to strength with a 3.7% year on year improvement in the number of
students in graduate level jobs or further education within six months of leaving NTU which now stands at over 82%.
More significantly from a social mobility perspective, there was no difference in graduate employment between
students from the most and the least advantaged backgrounds nor hetween our white students and thaose from
black and ethnic minority ethnic backgrounds. We continue to pursue this central route to social mobility, refreshing
our curriculuri so that every student starfing their studies in 2018/19 will complete a period of assessed work
experience within their academic course,

NTU’s overall satisfaction level compared well to the sector, where we moved up 6 places {from 18th to 12th out of
153) against all official UK HEI's,

Valuing ideas

We have continued to deliver research that changes lives, communities and the world we share based around our
research themes of Health: and Wellbeing; Medical Technologies and Advanced. Materials; Sustainable Futures;
Global Heritage and Safety and Security of Citizens and Society. Research income from grants and contracts has
grown to £7.2 million.

Enriching society

We have developed strategic partnerships with 20 leading employers from the public, private and charitable sectors.
These partnerships, together with additional business relationships, are providing new opportunities to drive-the
employment of talented graduates, deliver high level skills, and nurture collaborative research and innovation
activities. This includes a partnership. with the East Midlands Ambulance Service (EMAS) who moved their staff
development and training centre to the Clifton Campus in September 2018. This Strategic Partnership is also creating
sighiificant opportunities to further develop integrated health provision. Greencore Group are benefiting from over
75 degree apprenticeships and are linking to NTU research in packaging innovation and-food preservation. The
Nottingham University Hospital Trust {NUHT) and NTU have co-developed the first professional learning framework
and co-education model in England, allowing nurse training {beyond registration) to be formally recognised at Post
Graduate level.
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Connecting globally

Our key ambitions-within this theme are to increase our international profile; increase the number of international
students that we recruit and to.Increase the number of opportunities for our own students to have-an internaticnal
experience whether that is here in the UK-orabrgad. In this last year our student numbers grew by over 9.4%

Empowering peopla
The key ambitions for this therrie are to support an enhanced career development and progression, to recognise and
reward contribution and performance both at an: individual and team level and to promote engagement and

wellbeing.

CORPORATE AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILTY

Nottingham Treht Uriiversity is a leader in corporate responsibility {CR), global citizenship and sustainable business
practices. Commitment to our students, customers, staff, partners, communities and the environmerit is an integral
part of the way we work. Operating with integrity and transparency, our aim is to embed CR thréughout the
organisation, integrating it with corporate strategy, decision making and risk assessmerit:

Every year, hundreds of our students volunteer to work in schoals, colleges and community organisations, primarily
in deprived areas where progression rates into university are lower than average. The students help to raise pupil
aspiration and attainment and support local community groups, whilst developing theif own skills and enhancing
their experience at university.

Commitment to enviranmental sustainability is a key part of our strategy. NTU holds the externally-accredited Eco
Campus Platinum and 150 14001 status for jts environmental performance.and practices. We continue to maintain
a leading position in the People & Planet Green League, in which we are ranked as a “First Class” University.

NTU helps to stimulate economic growth and development in‘the region through.a number of initiatives - including
The Hive and Future Factory, through participation in a wide range of public events and provision of business
services.

PRINCIPAL-CORPORATE RISKS

Principal corporate risks are iricluded as a standing agenda item each week at the meetings of the University
Executive Team (UET) and are formally reviewed quarterly. This is part of an institution-wide Risk Management
framework which has been developed and refined aver a number of years. The Audit and Risk Management
Committee has responsibility for ensuring that risk management systems are embedded and effective.

REGULATORY ENVIRONMENT
Legal status

Nottingham Trent U'ni\irersity is a Higher Education Corporation {HEC) established under the provisions of the
Education Reform Act 1988. The powers of the University are specified in section 124 of that Act-and further
articulated in the Further and Higher Education Act 1992.
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Charitable status

As a HEC, the University has exempt charitable status {which derives from the Charifies Act 1993 and its successor
legislation). It is subject to regulation by the Office for Students (OFfS) which, on 1 April 2018, replaced the Higher
Education Funding Council for England (HEFCE) as the Principal Regulator of those Higher Education Institutions
{HEIs) in England that are exempt charities.

The members of the Board of Governors are also the Trustees of the University for the purposes of charity law.
Scope of the financial statements

These Finaricial Statemerits have been prepared in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP}
for the Further and Higher Education Sector 2015 and FR$102, and in accordance with the publication requirements
set out by OfSin its role as Principal Regulator for exempt-charity Higher Education Institutions in England.

The Financial Statements comprise- the .consolidated results of the University and its wholly owned subsidiary
companies as follows:

*  Nottingham Consultants Limited undertakes those activities which, for, legal or commercial reasons, are more
appropriately channelled through a limited company;

¢ Nottingham Conference Centie Limited provides conference and catering facilities for-external clients;

*  Education Support Centre {UK) Limited provides the higher and further education sectors with expert technical
assistance on Microsoft products;

*  Nottingham Law School Legal Advice Centre Limited provides [eégal advice and information services to the local
community and individuals in need, whilst providing practical experience to law studerits;

* Nova Centric Limited provides further and higher education courses in music, multi-media and communication;

» Confetti Constellations Limited provides education facilities and services for music, multi—media\_ and
commuriications courses, including the design, consultancy; supply and installation services for the provision of
rausic, moving image, IT-equipment and furniture;

»  NTU Temporary Staff Limited provides temporary staff to the Un'iVersit_y.

All subsidiaries covenant the whole of any distributable taxable profits to the University, except for Nova Centric
Limited which is a charitable company.

The consolidation includes the University’s share of the net assets of BioCity Group Limited of which the University
ocwns 50%.
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FINANCIAL REPORT

The University has delivered a strong financial performance in the year, producing an operating cash inflow of £43.2
million. The stirplus of the year of £0.2 million includes exceptional refinancing costs of £6.9 million as well as
accounting adjustments for pensions of £17.1 million which are based on an actuarial valuation at year end.

The high level of cash generation enables significant investment in the delivery of our Strategic Plan‘and in facilities
and equipment to support teaching and research.

Income and Expenditure Account

The table below is a summary of the Income and Expeénditure Account:

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

fm £m £m £m £m

income ) 290.3 271.8 2585 2254 213.2

Expenditure (266.8) (250.5) (233.1) (205.7) {194.5)

Surplus before pension adfustments, other 235 21.3 254 19.7 18.7
gains/losses and exceptional iters

FRS102-pension operating and finance costs (17.1) {13.6) (9.4) (9.7) (5.4)

Exceptional refinancing costs (6.9) - -. - -

Other gains/losses 0.7 - (0.4} 0.7 - -

Surplus-for the year 0.2 7.3 16.7 10.0 13.3

The opérating surplus-of £0.2 million répresents 0.1% of income. Before pension provisions:and exceptional items,
the surplus is £23.5 million, 8.1% of income. The exceptional costs relate to break costs on fixed rate loans repaid
following a refinancing: exercise undertaken to secure funding at a more competitive rate and reduce ongoing
interest costs. Pension cost accounting adjustments relate primarily-to the LGPS scheme. Actual contributions paid,
including deficit contributions are £10 million. The accounting adjustments are in addition to contributions and are
driven by factors such as the current yearand prior year discount rate and pension increase assumptions, as well as
return on net assets.

The trend in operating surplus is shown in the chart.
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Operating surplus as a % of income
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Income has grown by 6.8% year on year and by 36% over the last four years. Income from tuition fees represents
over 80% of total income. Since 2009/10 funding council grant income has decreased by £59 million and now
accounts for only 7% of total income.
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Expenditure in 2017/18 has increased by 10%. This increase in expenditure is due to exceptional refinancing costs,
and higher pension accounting adjustments, as well as planned investment to support the implementation of the
Strategic Plan. The increase in expenditure adjusted for pensions and exceptional items is 6.5%.

Staff costs excluding pension operating cost adjustments represent 57% of total income (55% 2016/17).
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Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) in 2017/18 was £44 million, 15 % of
income. Nottingham Trent University typically appears in the upper quartile of the higher education sector in this
measure, The charts below show the six year trend.

EBITDA (£ millions) EBITDA as a % of income
"o H 6% 16% P lew
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Cash Flow

The University sets a minimum 10% Net Cash Inflow from Operations target as the key financial performance
indicator. This target has been established to ensure investment capacity is created and to provide a sustainable
financial model. In 2017/18 a net cash inflow from operations of £43 million and 14.8% of income was achieved,
exceeding the long term financial plan target.
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The treasury management policy prioritises security over returns and is formally reviewed annually by the Board of

Governors.

The University maintains a firm policy with regard to debtors. In respect of creditors, the University ensures prompt
payment of suppliers and, subject to any other agreed contractual conditions, will normally make payment within

30 days following the date of invoice.

Balance Sheet

Net Assets excluding Pension Provisions have increased by £16 million. Net Assets excluding Pension Provisions have
increased by £135 million since 2009/10, due to strong financial performance and cash generation. Pension
provisions have decreased this year, with the increase on valuation exceeding charges to expenditure.

Non-current Assets

Current Assets (non-cash)

Cash and short-term deposits

Current Liabilities

Net Current Assets

Total Assets less Current Liabilities

Long-term creditors
Provisions (exc Pensions)

Net Assets excluding Pension Provision

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
£m £m £m £m £m
405.4 380.9 366.4 347.7 300.4
21.8 17.5 134 16.2 14.0
74.4 74.5 78.1 57.0 41.8
{43.5) (38.6) (42.1) (33.9) (28.7)
52.7 53.4 49.4 39.3 27.1
458.1 4343 415.8 387.0 327.5
(142.3) (133.0) (134.6) (131.9) (84.1)
(0.9) (2.8) (2.8) (2.0) (11.6)
314.9 298.5 278.4 253.1 231.8
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Pension Provisions (187.6) (206.4) (195.7) (135.2) (100.3)
Net Assets 127.3. 92.1 82.8 117.9 1315

The University has an ongoing estates investment and regeneration programme to support the delivery of teaching,
research and student facilities. A further £42 million has been invested in 2017/18, and financial plans include
continued investment.

Capital Expenditure £ million
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The initial phases of the regeneration programme were supported through borrowing in addition to disposal
proceeds, working capital and cash reserves. During 2017/18 £44 million was raised via a private placement to allow
repayment of fixed term loan balances and associated break costs. Borrowing has increased by £6m due to the break
costs.
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At 31 July 2018 cash reserves have remained at the same level as last year and represent 100 days liquidity.
Borrowing has increased by £6 million to £86 million, 30% of income.

Liquidity (cash as days expenditure)
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For accounting purposes, in accordance with accounting standard FRS 102, the actuary to the Nottinghamshire LGPS,
the Nottinghamshire County Council Pension Fund (NCCPF), is required to calculate the present value of future
pension obligations and compare this to the value of the assets owned by the pension scheme.

All organisations with defined benefit pension schemes have to use the same methodology, ensuring financial
statements are produced on a consistent basis and pension liability calculations for accounting purposes are
comparable.

Accounting standards require actuaries to calculate the present value of future obligations using a discount rate
linked to the investment performance of the Merryll Lynch AA-rated corporate bond yield. Low returns for a number
-of years for this asset.class have resulted in low discount rates and therefore a higher present value of future
obligations, leading to large pension deficit liabilities appearing on the Balance Sheets of organisations with defined
benefit pension schemes.

11
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The majority of the Pension Provision (92%) relates to the Nottinghamshire County Council Pension Fund (NCCPF).
At the triennial valuation date of 31 March 2016 the actuaries reported that the proportion of the scheme relating
to the University was broadly on target to achieve its 20 year deficit recovery plan.

NCCPF funding level shortfall
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The accounting standard that dictates a methodology for inclusion of pension liabilities on balance sheets is more
prudent and continues to show a material deficit. This has decreased in 2017/18 due to actuarial assumptions,
primarily a lower assumed pension increase rate, and an increase in asset values.

Balance Sheet Pension Liability
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Structure and operation

The University’s Board of Governors comprises lay/independent, co-opted and staff members appointed in
accordance with the Instrument and Articles of Government of the University. All of the lay/independent members
are non-executive. The roles of Chair and Deputy Chair of the Board are separated from the role of the University's
Chief Executive, the Vice-Chancellor.

Matters specifically resérved to the Board of Governors for decision’ are set outin the Articles of Government of the
University and the Office for Students Térms and conditions of funding for higher education institutions

The Board of Governors meets at least four times a year arid has established several Committees, including a
Membership and Nominations Committee, a Remuneration Committee, an Emplayment Policy Committee, an Audit
-and Risk Management Committee, a Strategy, Policy, Finance and Resources Comimittee, and a Development Board;
All of these Committees are formally constituted with terms of reference and comprise members of the Board of
Governors and (where appropriate) co-opted non-Governor members with relevant skills and expertise. Minutes of
the meetings. of the Committees, along with reports from the Commiittees on specific issues, are submitted to the
Board of Governors. ‘

The Board. of Governors-has adopted the Governance Code of Practice published by the Committee of University
Chairs (CUC), which was updated in December2014, The Board of Governors seeks to organise and conduct its affairs
in accordance with the principles of good practice articulated in that Code, and believes that, in all material respects,
its coriduct does accord with those principles. The Board of Governors and the University's Executive Team has also
had due régard to the general and supplementary guidance on public benefit published by the Charity Commissioh
in exercising their powers and duties.

The Board of Governors has adopted thé CUC Higher Ed_ucétion Remuneration Code and an annual report. on
remuneration will be prepared for review by the Board.

Primary responsibilities of the Board of Governors

In accordance with its various legislative: and regulatory obligations, the Beard of Governors of the University s
responsible for;

s Approving the'mis_siron and strategicvision of the institution, its long-term academic and business plans and
key performance indicators, and ensuring that these meet the interests of stakeholders;

e Dalegating authority to the Vice-Chancellor (as chief executive and head of the institution) for the academic,
corporate, financial, estate and personnel management of the institution;

e Ensuring the establishment and monitoring.of systems of control and accountability, including financial and
operational controls and risk assessment;

»  Ensuring that processes are in place to monitor and evaluate the performance and effectiveness of the
institution against its plans and approved key performance indicators;

e  Establishing processes to manitor and evaluate the performance and effectiveness of thie governing body
itself:

e Appointing the Vice-Chancellor, -as chief executive, and putting in place suitable arrangements for
monitoring his/her performance;

13
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e Appointing a Clerk to the goverriing body and ensuring that, if the person appointed has managerial.
’ responsibilities In the institution, there'is an appropriate separation in the lines of accountability;

e Acting as the employing authority for all staff in the institution ‘and ensuring the establishment of an
appropriate human resources strategy;

* Ensuring that appropriate provisions are in place for the general welfare and discipline of students;
o Safeguarding the institution’s assets, property and estate, and its reputation and values;

¢ Approving the annual budget and financial statements, and publishing audited financial statements for each
financial year,

“In respect of its obligations for financial. management issues, the Board of Governors is responsible for keeping
proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at -any time the financial position of the
University and the group and to enable it to ensure that the financial statements are prepared in accordance with
the Education Reform Act, the Staterrient of Recomimendéd Practice Actounting for Further and Higher Education
and relevant accounting standards.

In addition, Office for Students Terms and conditions of funding for higher education institutions and in accordance
with other relevant regulatory obligations, the Board of Goveimors is required to ensure {through its designated
office holder) that financial statements are prepared for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the University and the group and of the surplus or deficit and cash flows for that year.
In causing the financial staterments to be prepared, the Board of Governors has ensured that:

e suitable accounting policies are selected and applied consistently;”

» judgements and estimates are made that are reasonable and prudent;

o applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed ‘and
explained in the financial statements;

» financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
University and the group will continue in .operation.

The Board of Governors has taken reasonable stepsto:
¢ ensure that funds from HEFCE, OFS and other funding bodies are used only for the purposes for which they
have beén given and in accordance with the Office for Students Terms-and conditions of funding for higher
education institutions or other relevant regulatory agreefments beétween the University and the respective

funding bodies;

¢ ensure that there are appropriate financial and management controls in place to safeguard public funds
and funds from other sources;

» safeguard the assets of the University and the group and prevent and detect fraud;

»  securethe economical, efficient and effective management of the University and the' group’s resources and
expenditure.

14
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Belivery of public benefit

Through a diverse range of innovative, enterprising and pioneering activity across NTU, the University is positively
enhancing the experierice of both our students and staff, and further impacting on our position within the local
community, nationally and globally.

The University’s ambition is for all NTU students to excel in developing the knowledge, skills, and resilience to play
the positive role in society they envisage for themselves. By integrating the development of intellectual capability,
vocational skills, work experience and personal insight into the design of all NTU courses we will enable all students
‘o personalise their learning, combining theoretical rigour, practical relevance, and personal development;

This approach has led to NTU being awarding a gold rating in the Teaching Excellence Framework as well as being
shortlisted for the prestigious ‘University of the Year’ title in the Times Higher Education Awards.

Both provide recognition of NTU's Innovative and systematic approach to enabling students to fulfil their academic
potential and in particular the University’s commitment to supporting students from less privileged backgrounds in
transforming their life chances.

NTU was. awarded the Global Equality and Diversity Research Award for its Success for All strategy, which aims to
address the disparity in student success rates. The:work is based on research that shows that male students, black
‘and minority ethnic {BME) students, students from low socio-economic backgrounds and students entering higher
education via a vocational gualification route were more likely to withdraw from their course; less likely to-achieve
a ‘good degree’ and less likely to progress to further study or professional occupations.

NTU has recently launched a new place-based think tank — Nottingham Civic Exchange (NCE) — to tackle issues of
relevance to Nottingham and to explore the implications of national government policy from a regional perspective.
The think tank, which is a partnership with the Royal Society for the encouragement of Arts, Manufactures and
Commerce {RSA), will draw on the expertise of University colleagues, the RSA and our own students to undertake
its programme of work. NCE will first focus on Ordinary Working Farnilies — a key policy area for government — and
the extent to which households in Nottingham are feeling financial pressures.

NTU has implemented a robust strategy to expand the University’s research excellence and further our capability
and capacity to be a valued partner in projects of high commercial and public importance,

Recently the University won g prestigious Times Higher Education Award for Qutstanding Contribution to Innovation
and Technology. The award is in recognition of research led by Professor Paul Evans:in the School of Science and
Technology, who has pioneered the development of world leading 3D X-ray scanning technigues.

The research, which also previeusly contributed -to the University winning the highest accolade of a Queen’s
Anniversary Prize, has improved the way airports scan for explosives, weapons and other contraband items. The
judges commended the University for its continued refinement of the original research, which recently resulted in a
multimillion-pound grant from the US Department of Homeland Security.

NTU plays aleading role in the social, cultural,.economic and environmental development of the City, East Midlands
and UK. By developing strategic relationships with civic and commercial partners we are able to engage with .a wide
range of organisations in order to enharice their prospects and those of our students.

The University recently signed a strategic partnership agreement with Nottinghamshire Healthcare NHS Foundation
Trust to develop innovative-solutions to major challenges currently facing the NHS.

Work will be undertaken to share knowledge and éxperience in a wide range of areas such as skills and talent

development, student support, empowering people approaches, research-and innovation, and the mutial use of
facilities and equipment.
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A specific area of focus will be workforce recruitment, retention and skills development. The University will work
with the Trust to develop new pathways to enable individuals to convert or upgrade their-skitls. In turn, this will
enable students to carry out specific project work as well as undertake work placements and experience within the
Trust, leading to enhariced employment opportunities. ’

NTU is- committed to supporting the econcmic development of the regicn and works closely _w__i'th Local Enterprise
Partnership, D2N2, on projects such as The Big House programme, which aims to support businesses within the
creative and digital sector — seen as a key source of economic growth for both the region and the country: The
University's series of Elevator workshops provided small to medium sized businesses in Derbyshire and
Nottinghamshire with taitored sessions focused on disciplines such as marketing and writing business proposals to
help them expand.

The University was shortlisted for Outstanding Employer Engagement Initiative for its Grads4Nottm scheme, which
brings employers together with student talent and supports keeping local talent in Nottingham. Last year
Grads4Nottm placed 120 students across 4@ local businesses.

Promating internationalisation and attracting talented students from around the world is a key part of NTU’s.global
ambitions, As-an international University, we nurture global citizenship, engage with the international research
community, and attract talented students and staff from around the world, providing a vibrant multinational
learning community.

NTU offers international students a rich, variéd learning experience and in turn encouragés our home students to
learn from them and enjoy the cultural experience they can bring.

In termis of direct employment, the University is one of the largest employers in the.city. The annual economic
impact of the Unilversity has been valued at approximately-£515m.

NTU is a strong recruiter of students from outside the region, bringing the brightest and the best of their geheration
into the city and county. At the same time, we nurture the talent of local young people; we have nearly 3,000
students from an NG postcode studying at the University and another 5,000 from within the East Midlands. Taken
together, we are making a significant contribution to developing the future talent and skills that the region needs.

As well as an economic impact, NTU also plays an active role in the cultural life of the city, with strategic partnerships
with a range of local organisations such as the Ct_’ea’tive Quarter, Nottingham Playhouse, and the New Art Exchange.
The University is a key partnerin Nottingham’s bid to become European Capital of Culture 2023,

Finally, NTU plays an active role in the continuing discussions about.Higher Education Policy through both the
University Alliance and our own public affairs strategy.

Statement of Internal Control

1. As the governing body of Nottingham Trent University, the Board of Governors has responsibility for
maintaining a sound. system of internal control that: supports the achievement of policies, aims and
objectives, while ‘safeguarding the public and other funds and assets for which it is responsible, in
accordance with the responsibilities assigned to the governing body in the Instrument and Articles of
Government and Office for Students Regulatory Notice 2: “Regulation up to 31 July 2019 of providers that
were previcusly funds by-HEFCE” .

2. The system of internal control is designed to manage rather than to eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
palicies, aims and objectives. It can, therefore, only provide reasonable and riot absolute assurance of
effectiveness..

3. The:system of internal control is-based on an on-gairig process designed to identify the principal risks to the

achievement.of policies, aims and chjectives; to evaluate the. nature and extent of those risks and to
manage them efficiently, effectively and économically. it isthe Beard's opinion that this process has been
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in place for the year ended 31 July 2018 and up to the date of approval of the financial statements and
accords with HEFCE and OFS guidance.

The Board of Governors.has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control
and has established the following processes:

a) Consideration of the operational plans and strategic'direction of the University Is included on the
agenda of meetings of the Board of Governors;

b) The Board receives periodic reports from the Chair of the Audit and Risk Management Committee.
cancerning internal control;

c} Senior managers are responsible for aperational risk management within the University. In
addition the risk management function is supported by a Project Sponsor, Risk Manager and Risk
Management:Co-ordinator. Risk Management has been incorporated into the management and
decision making structures of the University; '

d) The University has an Internal Audit Service that operates in accordance with the requirements set
out in the Audit Code of Practice (as part of the Office for Students Terms and conditions of funding
for higher education institutions). It submits regular reports to the University’s Audit and Risk
Management Committee on the adequacy and effectiveness of the systems of risk management,
governance, internal control and value for money, together with recommendations for

improvement;
e) A system of key performance and risk indicators has been developed:
'f_) A robust risk prioritisation methodology has been astablished;
g} Organisation-wide risk registers are maintained, containing ithprovement actions and timescales.

Risk owners are required to.regularly update the relevant register on the steps they are taking to
manage risk in their area of responsibility, including progress reports on key projecis.

The Board’s review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed. by the work of the
executive managers within the University, who have responsibility for-the development and maintenance
of the internal control framework, the work of the internal Audit Service and by comments made by the
external auditors in their management letter and other reports.
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Membership of the Board of Governors
Members of the Board of Governors are also the Trustees of the University for the purposes of charity law.

The members of the Board (the Trustees) who served at any time during the financial year to July 2018 and until
the date the financial statements were formally approved were:

Independent and External Co-opted Governors
Mr N Goulden, Chair
Ms N Hill, Deputy Chair
Mr N Collard
Mr N Ebbs
Mr | Ellis
Mrs S Fish
Mrs C Hearn (retired 7 December 2017)
Ms L Holder
Mr G Love (appointed 1 September 2018)
Ms A Somal
Mrs S Walker-Smith
Mr T M Walmsley
Baroness D Warwick
Mr D Williams (appointed 1 September 2018)
Mr O Woodley

Academic Board member
Ms K Moore

Student nominee
Mr B Fox {appointed 1 July 2018)

Ms M Longdon (retired 30 June 2018)

Professional Services staff member
Mr T Woodman-Clarke (retired 19 September 2018)

Vice-Chancellor
Professor E W Peck

Chief Operating Officer and Registrar
Mr S Denton

- T::bt/t/’\”

Mr N Goulden Professor EW Peck
Chair Vice-Chancellor 27 November 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO COUNCIL OF THE UNIVERSITY OF NOTTINGHAM
TRENT UNIVERSITY

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Nottingham Trent University (“the University”} for the year
ended 31 luly 2018, which comprise the Consclidated and University balance sheets as-at 31 July 2018,
Consolidated and University Statements of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure, the Consolidated and
University Statements of Changes in.Reserves, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, and related notes,
including the Statement of Accounting Policies.

In our opinicn the financial statements:

° give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and the University’s affairs as at 31 July 2018,
and of the Group's and the University’s income and expenditure, gains and losses and changes in
reserves, and of the Group’s cash flows, for the year then ended;

° have been properly prepared in accordance with UK accounting standards, including FRS 102 The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland, and with the 2015
Statement of Recommended Practice — Accounting for Further and Higher Education; and

o meet the requirements of the Accounts Direction dated 19 June 2018 issued by the Office for
Students

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK} {“ISAs {UK}") and
applicable law. Qur responsibilities are described below, "We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities
under, and are independent of the group: In accordance with, UK ethical requirements including the FRC
Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis
for-our opinion.

Going concern

We are required to report to you if we have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of accounting
is'inappropriate or there is an undisclosed material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt over the use
of that basis for a period of at least twelve' months ffom the daie of appraval of the financial statements.
We have nothing to report in these respects.

Other information

The Board of Governors is respensible far the other information, which comprises the Operating and
Finaricial Review and the Corporate Governance Statement. Our opinion on the financial statements does
‘not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our
financial statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the
financial statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work, we have not identified material
misstatements.in the other information.

Board of Governors responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 13, the Board of Governors is responsible for: the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view; such
internal control as it determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from matetial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the group and parent University’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using
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Nottingham Trent University
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31 Julv. 2018

the'going concern basis of accounting unless it either intends to liquidate the group or the parent University
of to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to’issue our opinion in an auditor’s
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level df assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. ‘Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the econornic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC's website. at
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

We are required to report on the following matters under the Office for Students and Research England
Audit Codes of Practice issued under the Further and Higher Education Act 1352.

In our-opinion, in-all material respects:

) funds from whatever source administered by the Group or the University for specific purposes have
been properly applied to those purposes and managed in accordance with relevant legislation;

. funds provided by the Office for Students and Research England have been applied in accordance
with the terms and conditions attached to them; and

e funds provided by HEFCE have been applied in accordance with the Memorandum of Assurance and
Accountability and any other térms and conditions attached to them.

THE PURPOSE OF OUR AUDIT WORK AND TO WHOM WE OWE OUR RESPONSIBILITIES

This report is made solely to the Board of Governors, in accordance with the Univefsity's Articles of
Government and section 124B of the Education Reform Act 1988. Our audit work has been undertaken so
that we might state to the Board of Governers those matters we are required to state to them in an
auditor’s report-and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other than the University and the Board of Govérnors for our audit. work,
for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Aoy Yomtl—="

Anthony Hambleton
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor

Chartered Accountants

St Nicholas House

31 Park Row

Nottingham

NG16FQ Bo Poyppdior 201%
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Statement of Accounting Policies
for the year ended 31 July 2018

1. Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the historical cost corivention, modified to include certain fixed assets at
“fair value, and in accordance with Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP): Accounting for Further and Higher Education 2015 and
Financial Reporting Standards (FRS 102}: The Univarsity is a public bengfit entity and therefore has applied the relevant public benefit
requirernent of FRS102. Additionally, the-financial statements conform to the-guidance published by the Office for Students. The financial
statements have been prepared on-a going concern basis,

2. Basis of consolidation

“The consolidated financial statements incorparate thase of the University and all its subsidiaries for the financial year to 31 July-2018 and
include the results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the period In the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure-from the date ofacquisition cr up to the date of disposal. Intra-group transactions are eliminated on consolidation.

The consolidated financial statements do not include those of Nottingham Trent University Union of Students as it is a separate
unincerporated body in which the University does not exert control or dominant influence oveér their commercial ‘and financial palicy
decisions,

loint veritures -are accounted for using the equity method. Associated companies are accotinted for using the ‘fair valug medel method.
Where it is Impractical to measure fair value reliably without undue cost and:effort then the cost model is applied.

3, Recognition of income
Tuition fee.income
Tuition fee income is stated gross of any expenditure which is not a discount and recognised in the Consolidated -Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure over the period in which students are studying, including all fees payable by students-or their
sponsors. Where the amount of tuition-fee is reduced by a discourit for prompt payment, income is shown net of discount. Bursaries are
dccounted for gross as expenditure and not deducted from income:

Incame from the sale-of goods or services Is récognised in the Consclidated Statement of “Comprehensive Income and Expenditure when
the'goods orserfvices are supplied to.the external customer or'the terms of the contract has been.satisfied.

Investment income including dividends, other than that associated with-endowments, is recognised on 4 receivable basis,

Funds the University receives and disburses as a paying agent on behalf of a funding body are ekcluded from the income and expenditire
of the University where the University is exposed to minimal risk-and has.rio' economiic. benefit related to the transaction. Where the
University has applied this policy to certain funds.received during the year they are disclosed in note 34.

Grant Funding

Government revenue grants including recurrent funding council black grant and research grants are recognised inincome over the periods
the University recognises the related costs for which the grant s intended to compensate.

Capital {(non-recurrent) government grants, réceived in respect of the'purchase or construction of fixed assets, are recognised in income.on
a systematic basis over the expected-useful life of the asset to which the'grant relates.

Where part of a government grant is. deferfed it is recognised as deferred income within creditors and allocated between creditors due
within one vear and-due after more than one year as.appropriate.

Grants, in¢luding research grants, from non-government sources {non-exchange transactions} are recognised when the University is
entitled to. the income.and performance. conditions have been met, Income received in advance of performance-related conditions being
miet is récognised as deferred income within creditors and released toincome as the conditions are met.

Donations.and endowments
Non-exchange transactions without performance related conditions are donations or endowments as appropriate.

Donationsiand endowmenits with doner imposed restrictions are-recognised in income when thé University is entitted to tha funds. Income
is retained within the restricted reserve until such time that it is utilised in line with such restrictions at which point the income is.released
to general {Unrestricted) réserves through a reserve tranisfer.

Donations with no restrictions are recognised in income wheri the University is entitled to funds.

Investment Income and appreciation of endowments is recorded in income in the year in which it arises and as: either restricted .or
unrestricted.income according to the terms-of the restriction applied to the individual endowment fund.

There are two main types of donations and endowiments identified in reserves:

1. Restricted donations — the donor has specified that the donation must be used:for a particutar objective.
2. Restricted .expendable endowments - the doner has specified that a particular objective other than the purchase or
construction of tangible fixed assets, and the University has the right to use the capital.
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Statermment of Accounting Policies {continued)
for the year endéd 31 luly 2018

4, Accounting for retirement benefits

The Univérsity participatés, principally, in two pension: schemas, the Teachers’ Pension Scheme (TPS} foir academiic staff-and the Local
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for non-academic staff . The schemes are defined benefit schemes, independently administered and
contracted out of the Staté Second Pehsion {S2P).

Because .of the mutual nature of the TPS, the scherme cannot allbcate assets to individual contributing institutions: and a scheme-wide
contribution rate is set. As such, the University is exposed to actuarial risks associated with other institutions’ employees and is unable to
identify its:share of underlying assets-and liabtlitiés of the scheme and; therefore, as required by FRS 102(28), accounts for the scheme as if
it were a defined contribution scheme.

For the'LGPS defined benefit scheme the amounts charged to comprehensive income and expenditure afe the costs arising from employee
services rendered during the period and the cost of plan introductions; benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as.
part of staff costs, The net.interest cost of the net defined benefit liability is charged to comprehepsive income and expendituie and
incdduded within interest and, other finance costs.. Remeasurement comprising of actuarial gains.and losses and return-on scheme assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability) are recognised Immediately In other comprehensive
income. ’

Befined benefit schémes are funded, with assets.of the scheme held separately from those of the Group, in separate trustee administered
funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities are measured on an actuariai basis using the projected unit credit
method. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennialy and are updated at each-balance sheét daté.

The instituticn participates in Universities Superannuaticn Scheme. The scheme 15 a hybrid pension scheme, providing defined benefits {for
afl memibers), as well as defined contributicn-benefits. The assets of the scheme are held in a separate trustee-administared fund. Because:
of the mutual nature of the scheme, the assets are not attributed to individual institutions and a'scheme-wide contribution.rate is set. The
institution is therefore exposad to actudrial risks associated with other institutions’ employees and is unable to identify its share of the
underlying assets and liabilities of the-scheme o a corisistent and reasonable basis, Asrequired by Section 28 of FRS 102 “Employee
benefits”, the institution therefore accounts for the scheme as if it weré a-wholly defined contribution scheme. As a result, the amount
charged to the profit and loss account represeits the contributions payable to the scheme. 'Sincé the institution has entered into an
agreement (the Recovery Ptan) that determines how each employer within the scheme will fund the overall deficit, the institution
fecognises a liability for the contribitions payable that arise from tha agreement (to the extent that they relate to the deficit) and therefore
an-expense js recogniéed.

Fgrt_ﬁer.details af the above pension schemes are given in note 32.

5. Short term employment benefits

Short term eniployment benefits such as salaries and cornpensated absences are recognised as an expense in the year in which the
employees render service to the University. Any unused benefits are accrued and measured as the additional amount the University
expects to pay asa result of the unused entitlement.

6. Finance Leases

Leases in which the Group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership-are classified as finance leases. Leased assets.
acquired by way of a finrance lease and the corresponding lease liabilities are.initially recognised at-an amount.equal to the lower of their
fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments at inception of the lease.

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between-the finance charge'and the reduction in the outstanding liability. The finance charge is
allocated to each-period during the lease term so.as to produce.a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining batance of the liability

7. Operating leases

Costs'in respect of operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Any lease premiums or incentives are spread
over the minimum lease term.

8. Foreign currency

Monetary assets-and liabilities denomiinated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are translated to the functionat currency at the
foreign exchange rate ruling at that date.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that-are-measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are transiated using the éxchange
rate at the date of the transaction.

Foreign-exchange.differences arising on transiation are recognised in the income statement.

9. Intangible assets

Intangible assets are amortised over 10 years representing the remaining estimated economic fife of the assets..
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Statement of Accounting Policies {continued)
for the year ended: 31 July- 2018

10.

11.

12.

13.

14,

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost or valuation, net of accumulated depreciation and any provision for impairfnent. Depreciation is

provided on all tangible fixed assets, othér than freehold fand and assets-under-construction, at rates calculated to write-off the cost or
valuation of each asset less any residual. value, on a straight-line basis over its expected useful life as-follows:

Freehold buildings 10 to 50 years
Flant & equipment 3 to 20 years
Fixtures-& fittings 10 years
Vehicles 4 years.

Equipment: purchased for specific researéh grants is depreciated over the shorter of its estimated useful life or the remaining life of the
research grant, with the related grant income being credited over the same periocd.

Tangible fixed asset additions are capitalised where the cost of such assets exceeds £25,000. lems costing less than this amount are
expensed in the-year of purchase.

Land and buildings:

Land and building assets in .existence as at 31 July 2014 were revalued to fair value on transition to FRS 102 as at 1 August.2014.
Subsequent additions to. Land and building after this date but befora 21 July 2015 have'also beén subject to revaluation, The fair valug:of
land and bulldings was determined from either market-based evidence or depreciated. replacement cost by appraisal by independerit

qualified valuers in accordance with the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors Valuation — Professiondl Standards lanuary 2014, In
particular, UK Valuation Standards 1,.2 and 4:

Fair value js defined as the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, a liability settled oran equity instrument.granted could be
exchanged, betweenknowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.

Depreciation and impairment losses, if applicable, are subseguently charged on the revalued amounts.

Assets under construction

Assets under construction are accotinted for at cost, based on the value of architects’ certificates and other diract costs, incurred up to 31
July. The assets-are not depreciated until they are brought into use.

Investments
Investments in subsidiaries and associates-are measured at cost less impairment.

tnvestments in publicly traded ordinary shares are measured at fair value.

‘Current asset investments, which may include listed investments, are held at fair value with movements recognised in Surplus/Deficit

before tax.

Stock

Stock is held at the lower of cost and net realisable value, and is measured using an average cost fermula.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash'includes cash on hand and deposits repayable en demand. Deposits are repayable on demand if they are in practice available within
24-hours without penalty.

Cash equivalents are hield for the purpose of meeting short term cash commitments and defined as short term, highly liquid investments
that are readily-convertible to cash with insignificant risk in change of value.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised in the financiat statements when:

{a) the University has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past event;

(b} it is probable that an cutflow of ecanomic benefits will be required to settle the-obligation; and
(c) a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

"The amount récoghised a5 a pravision is determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that. reflects risks

specificto the liability.
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Statement of Accounting Policies {continued)
for the year ended 31 July 2018

15.

16.

Taxation

The University and.it’s subsidiary, Nova Centric Limited are considered o pass.the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 Findnce Act 2010
and therefore meet the definition of a charitable organisation for UK corporation tax purposes. Accordingly, the University is potentially
exempt from taxation In respect of income or capitat gains received within categories covered by Chapter 3 Part 11 Corporation Tax Act
2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to
charitable purposes.

Nottingham Consultants Limited, Education Support Centre (UK) Limited, Confetti Constellations Limited Nottingham Conference Centre
Limited-and-NTU Temporary Staff Limited are not subject-to these exemptions and are liable for carperation tax on profits or gains arising.
However, under a Gift Aid arrangement with the University the subsidiary companies transfer all their taxable profits; wheare allowable
under reglilation; tothe University to minimise the payment.of corporation tax.

The University is partially exempt in fespect of Value Added Tax, so that it-can only recover a minor e!er_nent' of VAT charged an its inputs.
Irrecoverable VAT on inputs is included in the costs of such inputs and added to the cést of tarigible fixed assets as appropriate, where the
inputs themselves are tangible fixed assets by nature.

Deferred tax is: provided in full on timing differences which result in an obligation at the balance sheet date to pay more tak, or-a right to
pay less tax, at a future date; at rates expected to apply. when they crystallise based on current rates and [aw. Timing-differences arise from

‘the inclusion of items of income and. expenditure in taxation computati’ons in periods different from those in which they are included in

financial statements. Deferred tax assets are mare Tikely than not to be recovered. Daferred tax assets-and liahilities are not discounted.

Resaerves

Reserves are classified as restricted or unrestricted. Restricted endowment reserves include balances which, through endowment to the
University, are held as a restricted. expendable fund..

Other restricted reserves include balances where the donor has designated a specific purpose and therefore the University is restricted in
the'use of these funds.
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Consolidated and University Statement of Comprehensive iIncome and Expenditure

All items-of income. and expenditure relate to continuing activities,

The accompanying notes form‘an integral part of the financial statements.
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Year Ended 31 July 2018
Year ended 31 July 2018 Yearended 31 July 2017
Consolidated  University Consolidated  University
Note £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Income
Tuitian fees and education contracts 1 239,645 235,174 220,734 215,795
Funding body grahts 2 20,370 20,370 21,169 21,169
‘Research grants and-contracts 3 7,195 7,175 6,687 6,687
Dtherincome 4 22,310 15,669 22,252 14,847
Investment income 5 431 781 688 777
Donations and endowments & 309 278 238 238
Total income 290,260 279,447 271,768 259,513
Expenditure
Staff costs 7 176,794 167,259 159,447 150,407
Other operating expenses 8 78,947 78,650 77,930 74,499
Interest and other finance costs 9 9,085 9,099 8,861 8,831
Interest and gther fin_ance casts - exceptional ] 6,897 6,857 - -
Intangible amortisation 11 393 B . 384 -
Depreciafion 12 18,736 17,968 17,441 16,634
Total expenditure 290,853 279,873 264,063 250,371
(Defmt)}'surplus' befora other gains losses.and share of operating (593) (a26) 7,705 9,142
surplus of associates
{Loss)/ gain on dispasal of fixed assets {497} (493) (316} (3-1(_5}
Gain/{loss) oninvestments 108 108 (140} 10
Share of operating surplusin associates 14 1,137 - 57 -
Result before tax 155 (811) 7.306 8,836
Taxation 10 6 - (22} -
Result for the year 161 (811) 7,284 8,836
Actuarial gain/{loss) in respect of pension schemes 21 35,082 35,082 2,055 2,055
Total comprehensive income for the year 35,243 34,271 -9,339 10,891
Represented by:
Endowment comprehe'nsive\income for the year 23 (660) {660} {606) {606}
Restricted comprehensive income for the year 24 24 24 (77) {77)
Unrestricted comprehensive income for the year 35,879 34,907 10,022 11,574
Attributable to the University 35,243 34,271 9,339 10,891
Surplus for the year attributable to;
University 161 {811) 7,284 8,836




Consolidated and University Statement of Changes in Reserves

‘Year ended 31 July 2018

Consolidated

Balance at'1 August 2016

Surplus/(deficit) from the income & expenditure statement
Other comprehensive income

Transfers between revaluation and income and expenditure reserve
Release of restricted capital funds spent inyear

Total comprehensive income-far the year

Balance at 1 August 2017

Surplus/{deficit) from the income & expenditure statement
Other comprehensive incoime

Transfers between revaluation.and income and expenditure reserve
Release of restricted capital funds spentin year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance at 31 July 2018

University’

Balance at 1 August 2016

Surplus/{deficit) from the income-and expenditure statement
QOther comprehensive income.

Transfers between revaluation and income.and expenditure reserve
Release of restricted funds spent in year

Total .comprehensive income for the year
Balance at 1 August 2017

-Su}plus/(deficit) from the income and expenditure statement
Othier corriprehensive income

Transfers between revaluation and-income and expenditure reserve
Rélease of restricted funds spent in year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance.at 31 July 2018

Revaluation

Income and expenditure account reserve Total
Endowment Restricted Unrestricted

E'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 )
6,864 142 (6,232} ‘81,977 82,751
(606) (7 7,967 - 7,284

- - 2,055 - 2,055

- - 1,850 1,890) -

(608} {77) 11,912 (1,890) 9,339
6,258 b5 5,680 80,087 52,090
{660) 24 797 - 161

- 35,082 - 35,082

- - 2,325 (2,325) -

(660} 24 38,204 (2,325} 35,243
‘5,598 89 43,884 17,762 127,333

Revaluation
Income and expenditure account reserve Total
Endowment Restricted Unrestricted

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 -E'000
6,864 142 {4,582) 76,519 78,943
(606) {77) 9,519 - 8,836

- - 2,055 ) - 2,055

- - 1,751 {1,751) -
{606) (77} 13,325 (1,751) 10,891
6,258 B5 8,743 74,768 89,834
(660} 24 (175) - (811)
- . 35,082 - 35,082

- - 2,186 {2,186} -
(660) 24 37,093 {2;186) 34,271
5,598 89 45,836 72,582 124,105

The accompanying notes form.an integral part of the financiaf statements.
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Consolidated and University Balance Sheet

As at 31 July 2018
As at 31 July 2018 As at 31 July 2017
Consolidated University Consolidated University
Note £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 11 2,726 - 3,071 -
Fixed assets 12 399,132 376,216 375,475 360,410
Investments . 13 594 594 486 486
Investment in subsidiaries 13 - 3,976 - 3,976
Investments in associates 14 2,985 441 1,858 441
405,437 381,227 380,890 365,313
Current assets
Stock 15 549 259 468 243
Debtors: amounts falling due within one year 16 18,052 26,549 13,862 25,481
Debtors: amounts falling due after one year 17 3,174 13,505 3,174 3,174
Investments 18 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000
Cash and cash equivalents 25 49,375 47,517 49,521 48,347
96,150 112,830 92,025 102,245
Less: Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 19 (43,480) (40,075) (38,605) (36,411)
Net current assets 52,670 72,755 53,420 65,834
Total assets less current liabilities 458,107 453,982 434,310 431,147
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year ’ 20 (142,266) (142,266) {133,029) (133,029)
Provisions
Pension provisions 21 (187,611) (187,611) (206,384} (206,384)
Other provisions 21 - - (1,900) {1,900)
Provision for deferred tax 22 (897) - (907) -
Total net assets 127,333 124,105 92,090 89,834
Restricted Reserves
Income and expenditure reserve - endowment reserve 23 5,598 5,598 6,258 6,258
Income and expenditure reserve - restricted reserve 24 89 89 65 65
Unrestricted Reserves
Income and expenditure reserve - unrestricted 43,884 45,836 5,680 8,743
Revaluation reserve 77,762 72,582 80,087 74,768
Total Reserves 127,333 124,105 92,090 89,834

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 21 to 46 were approved by the Board of Governors on 27 November 2018 and signed on its behalf on that
date by:

@@ E)Lc/f\

Mr N Goulden Professor E W Peck
Chair Vice Chancellor

27



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
Year'ended 31 fuly 2018

Cash fiow from operating activities
Surplus for the year
Adjustment for non-cash items
De'preciation

Armortisation of intangibles

Loss f{gain) on investments

(increase)/decrease instock
(Increase}/decrease in debtors

Incréase /{decrease)in creditors

Increase n pension provision
(Decrease)fincrease in other provisions
Change.in deferred tax‘asset/provision

Share of operating deficit /(surplus) in assotiate

Adjustment for investing or financing-activities
Investment income

Iriterest payable

Endowment-incorne

Loss/{profit} on the sale of fixed assets

Capital grant income

Net cash inflow '_from-operatin_g activitias

Cash flows from investing activities

Praceeds from sale of fixed assets

Capital grants receipts

Disposal of non-current-asset investments
Withdrawal of deposits

Investment income

Payments made to acquire fixed assets

Payments made to acquire intangible fixed assets

Payments made to-acquire subsidiary undertakings:

New non-current asset investments
New'deposits

Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid

Endowment cash received
New-secured loans

New unsecured ioans
Repayments of amounts borrowed
Repayment of finance leases

Increasef{decrease} in cash and cash equivalents in the year

Cashand cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash-and cash equivalents at.end of the year

The accompanying notes form an intégral part of the financial statements,
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Year ended 31 July 2018
Consolidated
£'000

161

18,736
393
(108)

(81)

" (8,195)
6,391
16,308
{1,900}
{s)
{1,137}

(a31)
10,602
(127)
.497
{1,883)

43,221

2,952

7

431
{41,900)
8)

{38;558)

(10,602)
127
44,548
(38,744}
{238}

{4,809)

(146)

49,521
49,375

Year ended 31 luly 2017
Consolidated
£'000

7,284

17,441
384
140
19
(4,084}
(1,790)
12,760
22
(57)

(688)
3,930
{166)
316
{1,537)
33,974

2,102

688
(34,489)

15,000
{16,700)

{3,930
166

100
{2,222)

’ {5,886)
11,388

38,133
49,521



Notes to the Accounts
for the year ended 31 July 2018

¥ear Ended 31 July 2018 Year Ended 31 July 2017
Consolidated  University Consolidated University
Note £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000.
1 Tuition fees and education contracts
Furthér education 3,989 164 3,610 155
Undergraduate titition - Home/EU 185,684 185,636 173,475 172471
Undergraduate tuition - Overseas 19,387 19,387 17,424 17,424
Postgraduate tuition - Home/EU - 15,185 15,235 13,062 13,062
Postgraduate tuition - Oversgas 12,731 12,731 11,612 11,612
Other fees and support grants 2,669 2,021 1,551 1,071
’ 239,645 235,174 220,734 215,795
2. Funding body grants
Recurrent grant
Higher Education Funding Council for England / Office for Students 16,064 16,064 16,960 16:960
E£ducation and Skills Funding Agency 993 993 1,171 1,171
Specific grants
Higher Educatton Funding Cauncil for Englarid 1,700 1,700 1,437 1,417
National College for Teaching and Leadership 112 112 172 172
Non:recurrentgrants released in year
Buildirigs 1,501 1,501 1,449 1,449
20,370 20,370 21,169 21,169
3 Research grants and contracts
Research councils and charities . 2,062 2,062 2,063 -2,063
Government {UX-and overseas) : 2,038 2,038 1,719 1,719
Industry and commerce 3,095 3,075 2,905 2,905
7,185 7,175 6,687 5,687
4 Other income
Residences; catering. and conferences 7,964 5,589 7,979 5,619
Other revenue grants ) 3,335 3,248 2,369 2,431
Other capital grants ] 381 381 38 88
Other income generating activities 10,630 6,451 11,816 6,709
' 22,310 15,669 22,252 14,847
5 Investmentincome
Investment income on expendable endowments 23 50 50 55 55
Other investment income 296 296 332 332
Otherinterest receivable 85 435 301 380
431 781 688 777
6 Donations and endowments
New endowments 23 127 127 166 ‘166
Donations with restrictions 24 85 85 9 9
Unrestricted donations . 97 66 63 63
309 278 238 238

29



MNotes to.the Accounts
for the year ended 31 July 2018

Year Ended 31 July 2018 Year Ended 31 July 2017
Consolidated  University Consolidated University
Nota £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
7 Staffcosts
Employee costs: .

Wages and salaries 132,681 123,914 - 121,390 112,838
Soclal security costs 13,287 12,804 12,175 11,760
Other pension costs 19,097 18,812 : 17,256 17,183
Pension operating costs i 21 11,729 11,729 8,626 -‘.8',626
Total 176,794 167,259 159,447 150,407
2018 2017

Emoluments of the Vice-Chancellor: £'000 £'000
Salary 262 250
Payment in ligu of pension contributions 40 33
Bonus ' 25 24
327 307
Pension contributions including contributions to USS & 12
333 319

Remuneration of other higher paid staff, excluding employer's pension contributions: No. No.
£100,000 to £104,999 3 4

£105,000 to £105,999 3 2

£110,000 to £114,999 2 -

£115,000 to £119,999 1 2

£120,000 to£124,999 1 1

£125,000 to £129,999 1 -

£130,000 to £134,999 ' - 1

£135,000to £139,999 - 1

£140,000 to £144,999 5 2

£145,000'to £149,99% - 1

4’£150,_000 to £154,999 - 1

£165;000 to £169,993 . 1 -

£170,000 to £174,59% - 1

£175,000 to £179,999 1 -

£185,000 to£189,995 1 -

£200,000 to £204,999 - 1

- Mo remuneration was paid to the Chair of the Board of Governors nor to other non-executive members of the Board and its subsidiary.
undertakings.

Average weekly staff numbers (including senior post-haiders) empioyed during the period: 2018 2017

Fte Fte

Academic departments 1,472 1,353
Academic support services ' 670 669
Other support services ) 113 9.
Administration.and central services 827 766:
Estates - 380 360
Qther 67 62
3,528 3,309
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7 Staff costs [continued)
Compensation far loss of office - alt staff

2018 2017

£'000 £'000

Coempensation paid/payable recorded within staff costs 850 857
2018 .2017

. Number Number-

Number of people to whom this was payable 31 31

Compensztion was paid in cash from general University. funds.

Key management personnel

Key management personnel are those members of the University Executive Team, having authority and responsibility for ‘planning,
directing and controlling thie activities of thie University. Staff costs include compensation (salaries and benefits; including any emplayer's
pension contributions} paid-to key management personnel as follows:

2018 2017
_ £'000 ‘£'000
Key management -personnel compensation 1,931 1,768

Trustees
No-trustee has received-any remuneration/waived payments frorm the group during the year (2017: Nonej:
)
The total expenses paid to or on behalf of the 20 trustees was £8,075 (2017: £11,954 to 20 trustees). This represents travel and
subsistence expenses incurred in attending Board of Governors and Committee meetings:and Charity events in their official capacity.

Head of provider pay

The Vice-Chancelldr dos not receive any taxable bensfits. He receives a hon taxable benefit in the form.of an annual heatth care
assessment with-a value of £450.

The Vice-Chancellor's remuneration is reviewed-annually by the Remuneration Committee, one of the sub-committees of the Board,of
Governors. The Remuneration Committes was established by the Board of Governors.on 1 May 2018, taking dver relevant duties:from the:
former Remuneration and Employment Policy Committee,

The Vice-Chancellor-is not a member of the Remuneration Committee. The Vice-Chancellor isinvited to atiend the Committee’s meetings
to.advise the Committee on agenda iterns.that do not relate to his own saiary or other potential benefits. The Remuneration Comimittee is
chaired by-a senior independent member of the Board of Governors, and includes both a staff and student voice within its membership. In
addition to five independent mermbers of the'Board of Governors, the Academic Board mernberon the Board of Gavernors (staff voice)
and a recent NTU student (student voice) appointed by the Chair of the Board with the advice of the NTSU are both full rhembers. The
Remuneration Committee can draw on the expertise of an independent adviser,

6 considering -any increase in his saléry, or itideed that of any member of the senior tearn, this Committee hastaken into.account:

. the perfarmance of the University overall and against the 21 Key Performiance Indicators {KPIs) agreed by the Board of
Governors; ‘

. the comparability of the current package to peers both within the sectorand appropriate benchmarks external to the sector;
and N

. the pay and-benus principles and practice operating across the University.

The head of the providel"s'basic-salary is 8.3 times the median pay of staff, where the median pay is-calculated on a full-time equivalent
basis for the salaries’paid by the provider:to its staff. The head of the provider's-total remunération is 9.6 times the median total
remuneration of staff, where the median-total remuneratioris calculated on a full-time.equivalent basis for the total remuneration by-the
provider ofits staff. -

Median pay calculations exclude atypical staff employed directly by subsidiary companies. Payments tc.agencies are also excluded. To
reflect these accurately in the median pay calculation would take a disproportiohate amount of time and effort.

Further details on the pay, expenses and payments’in liew of pension-contributions for the Vice-Chancellor are available on the NTU
website at https://www.ntu.ac.uk/about-us/governance/vice-chancellor/vice-chancellors-salary
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8 Analysis of other operating expenses by activity

Academic departments

Academic services

Administration and central sefvices
Premises

Residences,catering and conferences
Research grants and contracts

Cther expenses

Other'operating expenses include:
External auditors remuneration in respect of audit services
External auditors remuneration’in respect of non-audit services
Operating lease rentals -tand and buildings

- other

% Interestand other finance costs

Bank interest.on loans
BankInterest on loans - exceptional
Net charge on pension scheme

Note

21

The exceptional bank interest on. [pans relates to the cost of early repayment of the fixed term loans..

10 Taxation

Recognised in the statement of comprehensive income
Current tax

Current tax expense

Adjustment in respect of pfevious years.

Current tax expensa

Deferred tax

Origination and reversal of timing differences
Reduction in tax rate

Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses

Defarred tax {charge)/ credit

Total tax credit

Year Ended 31 July 2018 Year Ended 31 July 2017

Consolidated University Cansolidated University
£060 £'000 £'000 £000
20,343 24,209 19,570 21,276
14,014 13,958 13,230 13,165
27,718 26,237 25,989 25,215
9,161 8,918 10,029 9,565
2,416 987 1,899 855
4,350 4,341 4,425 4,423
945 - 2,788 -
78,947 78,650 77,930 74,499
59 a8 55 a7

31 6 3t G
462 246 260 220
306 306 206 206
3,705 3,718 3,930 3,900
6,897 ‘6,897 - -
5,381 5,381 4,931 4,931
15,982 15,995 8,861 8,831
- - 0 -

34 - 62 -

(a0) - {40 -

- 0 -

{6} - 22 -

{6) - 22 -

The'tax.charge is represented in the consolidated balarice sheet through the net finar_lcial impact of thé creation of corporation tax payable
(Note 19} and a deferred tax-asset (Note 16} and the decrease in the provision for deferred tax (Note 22}

11 Intangikle assets
Brand

Opening Balance

Additions
Amortisation charge for the year

At 313uly2018

Included in'the amount above is £2.69m which relates to the purchase of the Confetti Media Group brand on 3rd August 2015,

The amortisation period is 10 years.
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12 Fixed Assets

‘Investment Assets under
land &  Freehold Land Fixtures and Furniture and course of: Total fixed
Buildings and Buildings fittings equipment construction assets
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 ‘£'000
Consolidated '
Cost or valuation
At1August 2017 6,290 305,977 65,427 65,871 20,275 463;840
-Additions ) - 2,933 9,403 : 10,653 19,898 42,887
Transfers - 11,288 2,547 1,843 {15,678) -
Disposals - {455} {537) (1,337) (16) (2,885)
At31uly 2018 6,290 319,703 76,840 76,530 24,479 503,842
Cansisting of valuation as at: _
1 August 2014 ‘6,250 273,909 - - - 280,199
Cost- - 45,794 76,840 76,530 24,479 223,643
6,290 319,703 76,840 76,530 24,479 503,842
Depreciation
At1 August: 2017 ' 348 16,876 29,500 41,641 - 88.365
Charge for the year 116 5,188 4,250 8,142 - 18,736
Disposals ’ - ’ (63) {495} {1,833) (2,391}
At31 July 2018 464 23,001 33,295 47,950 - 104,710
Net book value
At 31 July 2018 5,826 296,702 ‘43,545 28,580 24,479 399,132
At 31 July 2017 5,942 289,101 35,927 24,230 20,275 375,475
Univegsit_y
Cost or valuation
AL 1 August 2017 . 6,290 292,476 62,637 61,013 18,579 440,995
Additions - 2,459 9,512 10,398 11,900 34,269
Transfers - 11,116 2,547 1,843, (15,506) -
Disposals - (495) (475) {1,758) {16) (2,744)
At 31 July 2018 6,290 305,556 74,221 71,496 14,957 472,520 )
Consisting of valuation as at:
1 August 2014 6,290 273,909 - - - 28(_),199
Cost - 31,647 74,221 71,496, 14,957 192,321
6,290 305,556 74,221 71,496 14,957 . 472,520
Depreciation
At 1 August 2017 348 15,840 26,758 37,639 ~ 80,585
Charge forthe year 116 5,693 4,284 7,875 - 17,968
Disposals - (63) {430) (1,756} - (2;249)
At 31 july 2018 464 21,470 30,612 43,758 - 96,304
Net book value
At'31 July 2018 5,326 284,086 43,609 27,738 14,957 376,216
At 31 July2017 5,942 276,636 35,879 23,374 18,579 360,410

Afull valuation as at 1 August 2014 of the University’s land and buildings (including those of its subsdiaries, where applicable) was carried
‘out by an independent and professionally qualified Valuer. In addition, building assets transferred at cost from Assets under-the course of
Construction during the period 1st August 2014 to 31stJuly 2015 were also-subjact to full valuation..

At31July 2018, investment land.and buildings included £430,000 {2017-- £490,000) in respect of freehold land which is not depreciated.
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12. Fixed Assets (continued]

At 31 July 2018, freehold land and buildings included £39,063,180 (2017 - £39,063,180) in respect of freehold land which is not
depreciated.. ’ .
Consolidated furniture and equipment include assetsheld under finance leases as follows:
at31July 2018  at31luly 2017
£'000 £'000

Furniture and Equipment 88 145

On-2 August 1299 the University signed & deed preserving the ‘furthér -education asset base’ inherited, following its merger with
Brackenhurst College on 1 April 1939, In.the-event of a total failure to preserve the asset base, the Skills Funding Agency shall have the
right to call for the repdyment of the further edication asset. base’, being the greater 6f the value of indexed-based ‘chattels’ less
fliabilities” or the total cost.of replacing the [and asset with accommodation and facilities.of comparable quality, size and location.

In 1999/2000 the University entered into a lease with a developer for the provision of a hotel/gym complex-on its-Goldsmith Square car
park. The lease is for 50 years with breaks at 15 and 25years. At the conclusion of the lease, the whole of the. property will revert to the
University.

During 2007/08 the University entered into an amended lease agreement with UPP Group Limited -and UPP Nottingham Limited for the
majority of its student residenices. The. University received consideration totalling £11,032,000 in 2007/08 in réspect of this transaction,
including a 20% shareholding in UPP Nottingham Limited and-an entitlement to loan notes to be issued by UPP Nottingham Limited. In
2009/10 the University received consideration totalling £652,000 in respect of an additional entitlement to loan notes. The leasés are for
40 years maturing in-2048 and at the.conclusion of the leases the properties will revert to the University.

in 2009/10 the- University entered into a leasé agreement with UPP (Clifton) Limited for the provision of a new student residence on the
Clifton campus. The University.received a-gross consideration toté!ling £7,333,000, which net-of costs totalled £6,880,000. The transaction
included a 20% shareholding in UPP {Clifton) Limited and an entitlement to. loan notes to be Issued by UPP {Clifton) Limited. The lease i5
co-terminus.with the existing:UPP agreements and at the conclusion of the lease the properties will revert to the University.

1

In 2011/12 the University entered ifito a new lease agreement. with UPP (Byron) Limited for the provision of a new student residence and
new Students Union building on the City campus. The University received a premium of £1,833,000 in respect.of the agreement. The
transaction includes & 20% shareholding in UPP (Byron) Limited and an entitlement to loan notes to be issued by UPP{Byron) Limited. On
completion of the building in 2013/14 the University received a further lease premium of £11,813,000 as a fixed asset rathar than cash.

Non-current investments

13

Subsidiary  Investmentin Other

Companies Associates Investments Total
Consolidated £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At T August 2017 - 1,858 486 2,344
Additioris . - - - -
Fair value adjustments ) - 1,137 108 1,245
Disposals - (10) - {10}
Impairments - - _ _
At 31 July 2018 - 2,985 594 3,579
University
At 1 August 2017 3,976 441 486 4,803
Additions - - - -
Fair value adjustmenits - - 108 108
Risposals - - - -
Impairments - - -
At 31July 2018 - 3,976 441 594 5,011
Other investments *

The Group halds 32,258 ordinary shares in Expertan Plc (2017: 32,258) which were valuad at £18.4 per share (2017: £15) as per the closing
Sell position en the Londen Stock Exchange as at 31 July 2018,

Shareholding % Cost £ Value £
Compandx Limited 50 550 -
SiActive Limited 27 25 -
Halo X-Ray Technologies Limited’ 26 260 -
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13

14

Non-current Investments (continued)
Other Investments {cont'd}

The Group also holds shares in a number of companies which have been set up through The HIVE Initiative. Details of these investments
have notbeen disclosed due to their insignificant nature. '

Subsidiary Companies

The University owns 100% of the issued share capital of the following companies which are registered In England and Wales and operating
in the UK.

No. of Ord Cost of Vilue of
‘Company Name Shares Investment Investment
£'000 £'000°
Nottingham Law School Limited 1,667,000 1,667 -
Nottingham Consultants Limited 555,000 555 -
Nottingham Trent Residences 1'plc 5,000,004 2,500 -
Nottingham Trent International College Limited 1 - -
Nottingham Cenference Centre Limited . i - -
Confetti Constellations Limited 100 3,976 3,976

In addition, the University-is the sole subscriber to the following companies limited by guarantee, registered in England and Wales and
operating in the UK

Company Name

Education Support Centre (UK} Limited {ceased trading on 31 December 2017)

Nottingham Law School Legal Advice Centre Limited

Nova Centric Limited .
NTU Temporary Staff Limited

The registered office for all subsidiaries is 50 Shakespeare Stréet, Nottingham, NG1 4FQ.

Investment in:joint ventures and associates 2018 2017
Shareholding Value of value of

Company Name ’ percentage Investment Investment
. % £'000 £'000

UPP Clifton Limited 20 78 78
UPP Byron Limited ’ 20 113 113
NET ' nfa 50 50
Loreus.Limited- 10 - -
BioCity Group Ltd {formerly investment in BioCity Nottingham Limited) nfa 2,744 1,607
Notts TV Limited 43 - -
Voicekey 36 - 10
2,985 1,858

The Group’s holdings in UPP Clifton Limited and UPP Byron Limited were a result of property lease financing arrangement consideraticns.
{sea Note.12).

The Group’s participating interest in BioCity Group Limited reldted to the net assets in‘the joint venture arrangement.entered into by the
Uriiversity to form BioCity Mottingham Limited with the University of Nottingham and the East Midlands Development Agency {EMDA).
Following the abolition of EMDA in March 2012 thie Usiversity has continued the joint venture arrangement with thé University of
Nottingham. During the year BioCity Nottingham Limited distributed its shares in BioCity Group Limited to it's shareholders. As BioCity
Nottingham Limitéd was-a. holding company only, thishas had no impact on the joint venture investment. '

BioCity Group Limited owns 75% of BioCity Scotland Limited formed with a minarity interest partner. BioCity Scotland Limited was gifted
land, plant, ;equipment and stock by Merck to the value of £11.3in ih 2012, Owing to restrictions under the joint venture deed the resulting
increase in net asset value of BioCity Group Limited; as a-result of this gift, is'an unrealisable gain. The accourits of BioCity Mottingham
Limited treat the “unrealisable” gain as a Special Reserve not distributable to BioCity Scotland Limited shareholders or joint venture
partners-of BioCity Group Limited.

Associated companies are accounted for using the fair value model method. Where it is impractical to measure fair value reliably without
undue cost and effart then the cost model is applied. The value of Investment in Loreus Limited is £10 {Ten pounds).
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15

16

17

18

19

Year Ended 31 July 2018 Year Ended 31 July 2017
Consalidated  University Consolidated University
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Stock and stores in hand
Einished geods 364 208 295 198
Goods for resale: : 185 51 173 45
549 259 468 243
Debtors: amounts falling due-within one'year
Trade Debtors 9,316 7,716 ‘7,371 6,111
Amounts due by group undertaking companies - 10,237 - 12,472
Deferred tax asset 33 - 38 -
Accrued Income 4,896 5,042 2,890 3,589
Prepayments: 3,509 3,404 3,465 3,309
Other debtors 298 150 98 -
18,052 26,549 13,8562 25,481

The movement in deferred tax asset is credited in the statement of comprehensive income and expenditure

Debtors: amounts falling-due after more than one year

Loan notes 3,174 3,174 3,174 3;174
Amounts due by group undertaking ccmpanies. - 10,331 - -
3,174 13,505 3,174 3,174

The'loan notes were received as part of the consideration for the lease agreements for UPP.Clifton Limiited and UPP Byron Limited. They
are operative over the life of the concession. -

Current Investments

Short term deposits 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000
25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000

Deposits are held-with banks and building societies operating in the London market and licensed by the Financial Services Authority with
mofe than three months but less than twelve months maturity at the. balance sheet date. The interest rates for these deposits are fixed

-for the duration of the deposit at time of placement.

At 31 July 2018 the weighted average interest rate of these fixed rate deposits was 0.54% per annum and the remaining weighted average
period for which the'interest rate isfixed on these deposits was 208 days.

Creditors : amounts falling due within one year Year Ended 31 July 2018 Year Ended 31 luly 2017
Consolidated University Consolidated Univérsity
Note £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Bank Loans 20° - - 2,152 2,152
Salix Finance Loan 29 359 359 250 250
Net-obligations under finance ledses 35 - 173 -
Trade creditors 6,586 52,876 5,653 4,952
Social security and other taxation payabie 4,692 4,335 4,428 4,331
Carparation tax payable: - - - -
Othér creditors 652 348 1,257 1,256
General.accruals 17,703 15,637 © 13,9086 13,057
Deferred income 13,453 13,320 10,786 10,413
43,450 40,075 38,605 36,411

Deferred incame

The fallowing items of income which have been deferred until specific performance related conditions have been met.

Tuition fee income 4,428 4,332 5,118 4,920
Government non-recurrent grant income 29 -1,467 1,467 1,321 1,321
Research grant income 4,752 4,752 1,608 1,587
Other grant income 507 492 1,173 1,173
Other income 2,298 2,277 1,566 1,412

13,453 13,320 10,786 10,413
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Year Ended 31 July 2018 ‘ Year Ended 31 July 2017

Consolidated University Consolidated University

Note £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

20 ‘Creditors : amounts falling due after more than one year

Other creditors 467 467 - -

Government non-recurrent grant deferred income 259 56,046 56,046 55,123 55,123
56,513 56,513

Salix Finance Loans 1,753 1,753 1,566 1,566
Bank loans ) 40,000 40,000 76,340 76,340

Other loans 44,000 44,000 - .-
Total bank and other loans 85,753 85,753 77,906 77,906
142,266 142,266 133,029 133,029

Salix have beén working with Universities since'2006,- currently offering finance on behalf of the Department of Business, Energy and
Industrial Strategy (BEIS) and previously through the joint-funded Revolving Green Fund Scheme 1-and 4with the Office for Students {OfS).

Analysis of bank and other loans

Due within one year 359 359 2,402 2,402
Due between-one and two years 359 359 2,513 2,513
Due between two and five years 453 453 7,845 7,845
Due in five years ar more 84,941 B4,341 67,548 67,548
Due after more than one year 85,753 85,753 77,906 77,906
Total debt ) ‘86,112 86,112 80,308 80,308 -

Analysis of debt by repoyable date:

Loan repayable by 2020 625 625 875 875
Loan repayable by 2022 941 9], 941 941
Loan repayable by 2023 546 545 _ - B
Loans repayable by 2030 - - " 38,492 38,492
Loan repayable by 2038 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000
Loan repayable by 2043 44,000 44,000 - -
86,112 86,112 80,308 80,308

Lender Amount Rate of

£'000 Interest

Salix Finance Limited 2,936 0.00%

Roval Bank of Scotland 40,000 4.93%

3.01% loan notes 44,000 3.01%

Total i 26.936

The £40m and the £44m which are repayable in-a single amount at the end of the loan period. The Salix loans are repayable in-
installments over the loan period.
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-21 Provisions for fiabilities and charges -

Consalidated & University USS pension”  Enhanced DB pension
Fund.deficit pensions on  obligations Total Pension Other
obligation termination {Note 32}  Provisions Provistons
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'600
Atl Aggust 2017 2,549 12,465 191,371 206,385 * 1,900
WKkilised in year - (802) - (802) -
Releéased in year {1,900)
Additions in year - Operating cost (1,012) - 12,741 11,729 -
Additions in year - Interest 45 287 5,049 5,381
Actuariat {gain)/loss - 1,506 {36,588) (35,082 -
At 31July 2018 1,582 13,456 172,573 187,611 -
USS pension fund

The obligation to fund the past deficit on the Universities Superannuation Scheme (USS) arises from the contractual obligation with the.
pension scheme for total payments relating to benefits arising from past performance. Management have assessed future employees
within the USS scheme and safary payment over the period of the contracted obligation in assessing the value of this provision,

Enhanced pensions on termination

The enhanced pensions on termination scheme is accounted for as a defined benefit scheme,

This relates to unfunded pénsion payments to which the university is committed.

“The assumptions for calculating the provision for enhanced pensions on termination under FRS 102, are as follows:
Discount Rate ' 2,3%
Inflation Rate 2.4%.

Othier provisions
Provision relates to potential future tax liability other than deferred taxation

22 Provision for deferred tax

Consolidated only 2018 2017
£000 £'000

Accelerated capital allowances 934 944

Shortterm timing differences (9) {9

Taxlosses carried forward and other deductions (28} (28)
897 507

Movement in provision

At 1August 2017 ) 907

Deferred tax creditéd inthe statement of comprehensive income and expenditure (10}

At31lJuly 2018 897
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23

24

Endowment Reserves
Consolidated and University

Restricted 2018 2017
Expendable ‘Total ‘Total
£'000 £'000 £'000

Balances at 1 August 2017

Capital . 6,258 6,258 6,864
Accumulated income - . .

6,258 6,258 6,864
New endowiments - 127 127 166
Investment income 50 50 55.
Expenditure (837) {837) 827)
Total endowment comprehensive income for the year ) (660) (660) {606}
At 31 July 2018 : 5,558 5,598 6,258 °
Represented by:
Capital ’ 5,598 ! 5,598 6,258
Accumulated income - - .
5,508 -5,598 6,258
Analysis by type of purpose:
Research support 5,598 5,598 6,258
5,598 5,598 6,258
Analysis by asset.
Current and non-current asset investments . - -
Cash & cash equivalents . : 5,598 -6,258
5,598 6,258

‘Restricted expendable endowments represents £5.6m relating to connected institutions under paragraph 28.Schedule 2 of the Charities

Act 2011, for funds received from the van Geest Foundation Caicer Research Fund, a charitable trust established to administer funds
donated by John and Lucille van Geest Foundation. The objects.of the fund are to advancé education at the University into all aspects of
cancer biology and contribute towards and meet the costs of cancer research undertaken at'the Unwers:ty and the publication of useful
results of such research.

Restricted Reserves

Reserves with restrictions are as follows: ' ‘Consolidated and University

2018 2017
Danations Total Total
) £'000 £'000 ‘£'00¢
Balancesat 1-August 2017 65 65 142,
New grants - - -
New donations 85 85 9
Capitai grants utilised - - .
Expenditure . {61) {61) (86)
Total restricted comprehensiveincome for the year 29 24 (77}
At 31 July 2018 - 89 89 65

Analysis of other restricted funds /donations by type of purpose:
Lectureships - -

Schélarships and bursaries 82 37
Research support - -
Prize funds 7 7
General - 21

89 65
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25 Cash and cash equivalents

Consolidated At1st August Cash  At3istlily
2017 Flows 2018
£'000 £'000 £'000
Cash and cash equivalents 49,521 {146) 49,375
49,521 {146) 49,375
University At 1st August Cash  At31stluly
2017 Flows 2018
£'000 £'000 £'000
Cash and-cash equivalents 48,347 (830) 47,517
48,347 (830) 47,517
26. Capital and othar commitments
Provision has not beeri made for the fo'llowing capital commitments at 31 July 2018:
Year Ended 31 July 2018 Year Ended 31 July 2017
Consolidated  University Conselidated University
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000
‘Commitrients contracted for 41,562 41,332 5,087 5,087
41,562 41,332 5,087 5,087

27 Contingent liabilities

The .University is & member of U.M. Assaciation {Special Risks) Limited, a company limited -by guarantee, formed to provide a mutual
assaciation for terrorism risks. The Urilversity is a.guarantor, ona joint and several basis with other miembers; of the asseciation’s £15m
bank foan facility.. If the association as a whole suffers.a shortfall in-any indemnity year, the membars are liable for their pro rata share,
‘'subject te the articles of the association and the memorandum, No lizbility has yet arisen under this guarantee.

28 Operating lease obligations

Total rentals payable under operating leases:

40,

Plant.and Land and
Machinery buildings 2018 2017
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
‘Payable during the year b 307 463 770 466
Future minimum lease paymaents due:
Not later than 1 year 326 497 823 515,
Later than 1 year and rat later than 5 years 232 2,034 2,266 1,164
‘Later than'5 years - 9,002 9,002 483
Total lease payments due 558 11,533 12,091 2,162
19 Government non-recurrent grant deferred income
Cansolidated and University
Funding 2013 2017
Councils Other Grants Total Total
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000
‘Balances at 1 August 2017 - Buildings only 52;616 3,828 56,444 55,880
MNew grants 2,496 456 2,952 2,101
Release to income statement {1,501) (382) {1,883) {1,537)
At 31 July 2018 - Buildings only 53,611 3,902 57,513 56,444
Analysed by:
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 1,467 1,321
Creditors : amounts falling due after more thian ohe year 56,046 55;123
57,513 56,444 .
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Subsidiary undertakings

The subsidiary companies (ali- of which are registered in England & Wales), wholly-owned or effectively cantrolled by the

University, are as.follows:

Company’

Nottingham Law School Limited

‘Nottingham Consultants Limited

Mottingham Trent Residences 1 plc
Nottingham International Coltege Limited
Nottingham Conference Centre Limited

Confetii Constellations Limited

Education Support Centre (UK) Limited

Nottingham Law School Legal Advice Centre Limitad

Nova Centric Limited

NTU Temporary Staff Limited

Nottingham Business School Limited
Nottingham Language Centre Limited

Confetti Media Limited

Connected charitable Institutions

Principal Activity

Dormant

Provision of courses, consultancy services and
commercial research and the commercial letting of
accommodation

Dormant

Dormant

" Provision of canference and catering facilities

Provision of education facilities and services. for
music; multi-media -and communications courses,
including the design, consultancy, supply and
installation services for the provision of music,
maving image, iT equipment and furniture

Provision of Microsoft support advice to the
education sesctor in the UK - dormant since 1
February 2018

Provision of legal advice and information services to
the local community and individuals in need, whilst
providing practical experience ‘to law: students
undertaking their professional law training under
the supetrvision and guidance of qualified soficitors

Provision of further and higher education courses in

‘music, muiti-media and communication courses

Provision of temporary staff
Dormant
Pormant

Dormant

Status
100% owned.

100% owned

100% owned

100% owned

* 100% owned

100% owned

Limited by Guarantae

Limited by Guarantee

Limited by Guarantes

Limited by Guarantee
100% owned

100% owned

100% owned

A number of charitablé institutions are administered by-or on behalf of the University and have been established for its generai or speéia!
purposes. As’a result, under paragraph 28 of Schedule 3 to the Charities Act 2011, these connected institutions. are exempt from

registration with the Charity Commission.

The mavements inthe year on:the total funds of ali connected institutions were as follows:

within Consolidated Financial Statements
Van Geest Cancer Research Fund
Nottingham Trent University Trust Fund

Opening
balance Income Expenditure
£'000 £'000 £'000
6,258 177 (837)
185 1 {9)

Closing
Balance

£'000

5,508
177

a1
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32 Pension:Schemes
The University participates, principally, in two pension schemes, the Teachers’ Pension Scheme {TPS) and the Local Government Pension
‘Scheme (LGPS). It also. participates in the Universities Superannuation Scheme-{USS}, although there is only a small number of participants

and a low levet of contributions.

Total Pension Cost for the year:

Year Ended 31 luly 2018 Year Ended 31 July 2017

£'000 £'000 £000 £'C00

TPS: Contributions Paid B,742 8,092
Uss: Contributions Paid . 1,170 1,062
Pension operating casts . . (1,012) 504.

. 158 1,566
LGPS ‘Contributions Paid 7.139 6,052
Pansion operating costs --administration charge. 99 86
Pension operating costs 12,642 ‘8,036

19,880 14,174

Enhanced pension contributions 195 203

Past Service liability contributions. 1,566 1,774

Pension Cost for'year - University ' 30,541 25,809

Other pensicn contributions ’ : 286 74

Pension Cost for year - Consolidated 30,827 25,383

Other pension contributions relfate to payments made by Confetti Constellations Limited -and Nova Centric Limited to several pensions
furids, including employees' personal pensians. No further disclasure is made on the grounds-of materiality.

Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The TPS is an unfunded multi‘employer defined benefit scheme. Contributions on a pay as you go basis are creditad to the Exchequer
underarrangements governed-by the Superannuation:Act 1972

Because of the mutual nature of the scheme, the scheme cannot allocate assets ta individual contributing institutions and a schemé-wide
cantribution rate is set. As such, the University is exposed to actuarial risks associated with other institutions' employees and is unableto
identify its shara of underlying assets and liabilities of the scheme and, therefore, as required by FRS 102(28), accounts for the schemie as
if it were a defined-contribution scheme,

The pension cost is normally: assessed .every five years in accordance with the advice of the Government Actuary. ‘The latest actuarial
valuation of the TPS was 31 March 2012 and contain assumptions and other relevant data that have the most significant effect on the
determination of the centributien levels as follows:

TPS Fund position gt last vaiuation

valuation Methed Praspective benefits
Market value of assats at date of last valuation £ 176,600 m
Proportion of members' accrued benefits covered by the-actuarial value of assets 2%
Salary scale increases per annum 4.75%

Following the publication of the latest.interim actuarial valuation in Jung 2014 the employer contribution. was set at 16.48%. with effect
from September 2015. An appropriate provision in respect of unfunded pensioners' benefits is included in provisions,

Universities' Superannuation Scheme

The fatest available: full actuarial valuation of the scheme was at 31 March 2014.{“the valuation date”), which was carried ot using the
projected unit method. The valvation as-at 31 March 2017 i underway but not et completed.

Since the institution cannot identify its share of scheme assets and liabilities, the following disclosures reflect those relevant for the
scheme asa whole.

The 2014 valuation was the third valuatien for USS under the scheme:specific funding regime introduced by the Pensions Act 2004, which
requires schemes to adopt a statutory funding ohjective,_Which is to have sufficient and approgpriate. assets to- cover their technicat
provisions. At the valuation date, the valug of the assets of the scheme 'was £41.6 billion and the value of the scheme’s technical
provisions was-£46:9 billion indicating a shortfall.of £5.3 billion, These figures will barevised once the 2017 Schame Valuation is complete.

Defined benefit liability numbers for the scheme have been produced using the follawing assumptions:

. 2018 2017
Discount Rate 2.16% 1.77%
Pensionabie Salary }
Growth n/a nfa

Pension increases {CP[) 2.40% 2.40%
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Pension Schemes {cont'd)

Universities' Supergnnuation Scheme {cont'd)

The main demagraphic assumption used relates to the mortality assumptions. These assumptions have beeh updated for the 31 March
2018 accounting.position, based on updated analysis of the Scheme's experience carried out as part Gf the 2017 actuarial valuation. The
mortality assumptions used in these figuras.are as follows:

Mortality base table

Pre-retirement

2018-71% of AMCOOQ (duration 0) for males and 112% of AFC)) {duration 0) for fernales

2017 - 98% of SAPS 51MA "light" YOB unadjusted for males

Post retirement .

2018 -96.5% of SAPS SlNMA-"Iight"‘ for males and 101.2% of REVD0 for females. -

20117 - 99% of SAPS-S1NA "light" YOB with a -1 year adjustment for fetnales

Future impravements:to mortality

2018- CM1_2016 with a smoothing parameter of 8.5 and a long term improvement rate of 1.8% pa for males and a-1.5% pa for females

2017 - CMI, 2014 with a long term rate of 1.5% pa

. 2018 2017

Retiring today Males ' 24.5 24.4
Females 26.0 26,6

Retiring in 20 years Males 26,5 26.5
Females 27.8 25.0

2018 2017

Scheme Assets £63:6bn -£60.0bn
Total scheme liabitities £72.0bn £77.5Bn
FR5102 total scheme deficit £8.4bn £17.5bn
FRS102 total-funding level BB 77%

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGRS is a defined benefit statutory scheme adminstrered in accordance with the Logal Government Pensicn Scheme Regulations 2013
and currently provides bene_fit on.career-average revalued earnings.

The administering authority-for the fund is Nottinghamshire County Council. The Pension fund Committee overseas the management of
the Fund whilst day to-day administration is undertaken by a team within the administering authority. Whare appropriate some functions
are delegated to the Fund's professional adwsers

As admiriistering authority to the Fund, Nottingham County Council, after consultation with the Fund Actuary and other relevant parties;is
responsible for ‘the preparatlon and maintenance of the Funding Strategy Statement.and the Statement of Investing Principles. These
should be amended when appropriate based on the Fund's performance and funding.

The Fund is valued every three years by a professicnially qualified indeperident actuary, as requiired by regulations, using the projected unit
method. Contributions aré:set as -a result-of the actuarial valuation. The last valuation was carried out as at 31 March 2016 and set
contribuitions for the. period April 2017 o March 2020: During ‘this.accounting period the Umver_saty s minimutn employer cantributions
were equal to 12.4%, whilst a-separate lump sum payment of £4.78m is payable over the three year valuation period to fund past service
liabilities. The fund position as at 31 March 2017 is detailed below:

Value of Assets £4,067m
"Funding level for-accrued benefit . 87%
Investment return.per anniim to meet future service liabilities

- equities 7A4%

- gilts 2.4%

~ property 5.9%
Long term pay scale increases per‘annum 3.9%
Consumer price inflation 2.4%
_Pensian in¢rease per annum 2.4%

The next actuarial valuation of the Fund will be carried aut as at 31 March 2012 and. will set contiibutions for the period April 2020 to
March 2023, There are no minimurm fundin_'g reguirements in.the LGPS but contributions are generally set to target a funding level of 100%
using the actuarial valoation assumptions.

‘To assess the value of the University's liabilities at 31 Jaly.2018, the Actuary: rolled forward the value of the University's liabilities
calculated for the funding valuation as at 31 March 2017, using the financial assumptions tha't comply with FR5102.

"Ta'calculate the asset share the. actuary has ralfed forward the assets allocated to the University at 31 March 2015 allowing for investment
returns, contributions paid into, and estimated benefits paid from, the Fund by and in respect of the University and its employees.

The full actuarial valuation involved projecting future cashflows to be paid from the Fund and placing. value on them. These cashflows
include pensions currently being paid to’ members of the Fund as well as pensions {and.lump sums). that may be payable in future to
menmkers of the Fund-and their dependents. These- pensions are linked to inflation and will normally be payable on retirement of the life of
‘the member ara dependent‘followmg a member's death.
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Pension Schemes (cont'd)

Local Government Pension Scheme (cont'd)

It is not possible to accurately assess the estimated liabilities as at 31 luly 2018 without completing a full valuation. However, the Actuary
and the University are satisfied that the approach of roliing forward previous valuation data to-31 July 2018 should not intraduce any
material distortions to the results provided that the actual experience of the University and the Fund has been broadly in line with
. underlying assumptions, and that the structure of the liabilities is substantially the same as at the latest formal valuation:

In addition, the actuary adopted a set. of demographic assumptions consistent with those used for the most récent -Fund valuaticn {31
March 2016). The pgst retirement mar_tality tables adopted are S1PA.tables with a multiplier of 110% for males and 100% for females.
These base tables are then projected using the CMI 2012 Madel, allowing for a long-term rate of improvement of 1.5%.

The material assumptions used by the Actuary asat 31 July 2018 were:

Financial assumptions (referericed to market conditions ot 31 July 2018)

Discount Rate
Pension increases.
Salary increases

2018
% p.a
2.65%
2.35%
3.85%

2017
%p.a
2.7%
2.6%
4.0%

The discount rate is the annualised yield at the 22 yéar point on the Merrill Lynch AA-rated corporate bond yield curve which was chosen

in consideration of the estimated duration of the University's liatiilities.

The Consumer Prices.Index assumptibn, an which future persion increases are expected to be based, will he 2.35% p.a.

Salaries are assumed to increase at 1.5% p.a above CPI inaddition to a promational scale. However, the actuary.has allowed for a short-

term overlay to 31 March 2020 for salaries to rise inline with.CPI.

Mortality assumptions (life expectation from age 65)

Retiring today Males
females

Retiring in 20 years Males
Females

Fund members' behaviour

- Members will exchange half their commutable pension for cash at rétirement

- Members will retiré at one retirement age for all tranches of benefit: and

- 10% of active mambers will take up optiori underthe new LGPS to pay 50% of contributions for 50% of benefits

2018
227
25.6

24.9
28.0

2017

22,6
25,5

24.7

27.8.

The University's-share of net assets of the Fund is approximately 5% and the estimated assetallocation as at.31 July 2018 attributable to

the University is as follows:

Equities

Gilts

Other bonds

Property

Cash

inflation-linked pool funds
Infrastructire

The University's financial position in the LGPS Scheme-as at 31 July 20181s:

Fair value of Fund assets
Present value of defined benefit cbligation

Surplus / {Deficit)
Present value of unfunded obligation
Net defined benefit asset / (liability}

31 July 2018

%
64%
2%

12%

13%
3%
3%
3%:

31July 2017
£1000 %
167,424 66%
8,060, ay
30,485 12%
29,543 12%
5,289 3%
6,247 2%.
6,114 2%
253,162 '
2018 2017
£000 £°000
283,764 253,162
(452,654} (440,683)
{168,890) (187,521)
{3,683) (3,850)
{172,573} (191,371)
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Pension Schemes {cont'd)
Local Government Pension Scheme {cont'd)

Recanciliotion of opening & closing balances of the present value of defined benefit and unfunded obligations

2018 2017
£'000 £'000
Opening definad benefit and unfunded obligation 444,533 357,946
Current service cost 21,443 15,500
Interést cost. 11,972 10,306
Past service-casts, including curtailment 77 241
Contributions 3,918 3,614
Benefits-paid net of transfers in {6,239) (7,086)
Actuarial losses’ . - {19,373) 23,622
Closing defined benefit and unfunded obligation 456,337 444,533
Reconciliation of opening & closing balances of the fair vaiue of Fund assets © 2018 2017
E'000 £'000
Opening fair value of Fund Assets 253,162 217,378
Interest on assets , 6,923 5,712
Return on assets less interest 17,215 26,924
Administration expenses . {99) (86)
Other acturial gains/{losses) - (1,389}
Contributions by University including unfunded 8,882 8,105
Contributions by Scheme participants ) 3,918 3,614
Benefits paid net of transfers in {6,239) {7,096)
Closing fair value of Fund Assets 283,764 253,162
Actuarial gain/{loss) in other comprehensive income 2018 2017
£'000 £'000
Return on Fund assets in excess-of interest ) 17,215 26,924
Othér actuarial losses an:assets - {1,389}
‘Change in financial assumptions 19,373 {17,898}
Change in demographic dssumptions - {4,452)
Experience.gain/{loss) on defined benefit obligation - {1,272
Actuarial gain/(ioss) of the net assets/defined liability 36,588 1,913
Sensitivity analysis
£'000 . £'000 £000
Adjustment to discount rate +0.1% +0.0% -01%
Prasent value of total obligation 446,548 456,337 466,350
Projected service cost 19,623 20,145 20,681
Adjustment to long term salary increase +0:1% T +0.0% -0:1%
Present value of total abligation 457,533 456,337 455,150
Projected service cost 20,145 20,145 20,145
Adjustrment to pension increases and deferred revaluation +0.1% +0.0% -0.1%:
-Present value of total obligation 465,174 456,337 447,698
Projected service cost 20,682 20,145 19,621
Adjustment to life:expectancy assumptions +1 Year None -1Year ,
Presentvalue of total abligation 472,542 456,337 - 440,704
Projected service cost 26,788 20,145 19,522
Projected pension expense for the year to 31 July 2019 2019
' £000
Service Cost 20,145
Net'interest on defined liability / (asset) 4,456
Admiinistration expenses 111
Total loss / {profit) 24,712
-
Employer contributions 8,713
) —-_—
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Pension Schemes {cont'd)

On 26 October, the High Court handed down'a judgment involving the Lloyds Banking Group's- defined benefit pension. schemes. The
judgment concluded the schemes should be amended to equalise pension benefits for men and women in relation to guaranteed
minimum pension benefits, “GMP". The Government will need to consider this putcome in conjunction with the Government’s recent
consultation on GMP indexation in public sector schemes before concluding on any changes required ta LGPS schemes,

Related Party Transactions

The University controls 100% of the voting rights of all subsidiary undertakings. Therefore the University has taken advantage of the
exemption contained in FRS 102 (33:1A) and has not disclosed transactions or balances with entities that form part of the group and are
included within these financial statements.

As gt the year'end, the University had an outstanding loan of £0.35m (2017: £0.2m) from BioCity Nottingham Limited. The loan is aceruing
interest at 1% above the Barclays Bank PIc base rate:

Due to the nature of the University’s operations.and the compasition of the Board of Governars {being drawn from public and private
sector-organisations} it is inevitable that transactions will take place with organisations in which a menmiber of the Board of Goverhors may
have: an interest. All transactions involving organisations in which a member of the Board of Governors may have an interest are
conducted at arms’ length and inaccordance with:the University's finantial regulations and normal procurér_nent procedures.

Mr B Fox {1 month), Ms M Longdon (11 months), Ms.S Walker-Smith {1 month) “and Mr TM.Waimsley {12 months), in addition to being
University Governors/Trustees, were ‘also members -of the Board of Trustees of the Mottingham Trént University Students Union,
Transactions with a total value of £2.7m relating to biock grant and other activities took place between the University and the Students
Unign.

No transactions-were identified which should be disclosed under Section 33 of FR3102.

34 Transactions whereby University acts only as paying agent on behalf of a.funding body

Funding body grants-are available solely. for students; the University acts only as the paying agent. The grants and disbursements are
therefore excluded fron ircomé and expenditure statement,

2018 2017
£'000 £1000
Learner support funtls .

Education and Skills Funding Agency grants 70 69
Interest earned - -
' 70 &9
Disbursement to students {55) (43}
Batance unspentas at 31 July: 15 26

National College for Teaching and Leadership bursaries
National College for Teaching and Leadership bursaries 1,762 1,621
Interest earned - -
1,762 1,621
Disbursement to students _(1,624) {1,482)
Balance unspent as at 31 July ' 138 139
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